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STATE BOARD OF NURSING,
)



)




)



Petitioner,
)


vs.

)

No. 11-0275 BN



)

SUSAN WARREN,
 
)




)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Susan Warren is subject to discipline because she pled guilty to a crime of which an essential element is fraud and dishonesty.
Procedure


On February 7, 2011, the State Board of Nursing (“the Board”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Warren.  Warren was served with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on March 24, 2011.  She did not file an answer.  We held a hearing on October 14, 2011.  Sharie Hahn represented the Board.  Warren did not appear and was not represented by counsel.  The case became ready for our decision on December 1, 2011, the last date for filing written arguments.

The Board relies on affidavits and a request for admissions that was served on Warren on June 1, 2011.  Warren did not respond to the request.  Under Supreme Court Rule 59.01, the 
failure to answer a request for admissions establishes the matters asserted in the request, and no further proof is required.
  Such a deemed admission can establish any fact or any application of law to fact.
  That rule applies to all parties, including those acting pro se.
  Section 536.073
 and our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.420(1) apply that rule to this case.  Therefore, the following findings of fact are undisputed.
Findings of Facts
1. Warren was licensed by the Board as a licensed practical nurse (“LPN”).  Warren’s license was current at all relevant times.
2. On July 30, 2009, Warren pled guilty to one count of bank fraud in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, in violation of 18 USC §§ 1344 and 2.

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear this case.
  The Board has the burden of proving that Warren has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Board argues that Warren pled guilty to an offense an essential element of which is fraud and/or dishonesty, which is cause for discipline under § 335.066.2(2):
2.  The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621 against any holder of any certificate of registration or authority, permit or license required by sections 335.011 to 335.096 or any person who has failed to renew of has surrendered his or his certificate of registration or authority, permit or license for any one or any combination of the following causes:

* * *

(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal 
prosecution pursuant to the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any profession license, or regulated pursuant to sections 335.011 to 335.096, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty, or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]
18 USC § 1344 states:

Whoever knowingly executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or artifice--

(1) to defraud a financial institution; or 

(2) to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits, assets, securities, or other property owned by, or under the custody or control of, a financial institution, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises; shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both.
18 USC § 2 states:
(a) Whoever commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures its commission, is punishable as a principal.

(b) Whoever willfully causes an act to be done which if directly performed by him or another would be an offense against the United States, is punishable as a principal.


An essential element is one that must be proven for a conviction in every case.
  Fraud and dishonesty are elements of the crime of bank fraud.  Warren is subject to discipline under 
§ 335.066.2(2).
Summary

Warren is subject to discipline under § 335.066.2(2).

SO ORDERED on August 2, 2012.


__________________________________
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